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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Groww Trustee Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls
Trustee Company Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Groww Trustee Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee
Company Limited) (the “Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
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Groww Trustee Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company
Limited)

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
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ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  The adverse remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph 2B(f)] below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 24 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 24 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility except that audit trail at database level to log any direct data changes has been enabled
starting from 3 February 2025. Except for the audit trail at the database level for the period till 3
February 2025, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the period for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with during the course of our audit. Additionally, the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, except for the
period for which the audit trail feature was not enabled.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion ‘and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/payable by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid/payable to any director is not in excess
of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W}100022

A

Rohit Alexander

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222515
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAl UDIN:25222515BMJHXI7029
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Trustee Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company
Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) () (A) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, Clause 3@ (@) (A)

®)
(i) (b)
(©
(d)

(e)

(ii) (a)

(b)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) ()

of Order is not applicable

The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, clause 3()(d) of
the Order is not applicable. :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering trusteeship services. Accordingly, it
does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities though there have been delays in
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Trustee Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company
Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

the case of Provident Fund on account of approval awaited from the regulatory authority. As
explained to us, the company did not have any dues on account of duty of customs and
Employees State Insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax
and Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(h) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during the year. Accordingly,
reporting on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(x) (@)  The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (@)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company. As represented to us by
the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received under the vigil mechanism
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of Groww Trustee Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company
Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

established voluntarily by the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (@) In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an Internal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act.

(b) In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 12,923 thousands in the current financial year
and Rs. 8,982 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
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Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.
ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:10/1248W/W4{100022

L

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222515
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAl UDIN:25222515BMJHXI7029
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date) :

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Groww Trustee
Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited) (‘the Company") as of 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
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provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 1p1248W/W-100022

gl

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222515
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAI UDIN:25222515BMJHXI7029
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Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited)
Balance sheet

(Al amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated)

Asat Asat
Particulars Mot 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Other non-current assets 7 876.75 =
Total current assets 876.75 -
Current assets
Financial assets
i. Investments 3 4,096.05 6,064.19
ii. Trade receivables 4 49.87 228.26
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 5 51.69 22.66
Current tax asset (net) 17 915 13.78
Other financial assets 6 - 918.00
Other current assels 7 1.25 .48
Tatal current assets 4,208.01 7,248.37
Total assets 5,084.76 7,248.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8 24,999.96 15,000.00
Other equity 9 (23,793.89) (10,947.12)
Total equity 1,206.07 4,052.88
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 11 69.82 28.53
Total non-current liabilities 69.82 28.53
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 10
i. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
ii.Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,371.56 2,843.12
Other current liabilities 12 437.31 323.84
Tatal current liabilities 3,808.87 3,166.96
Total liabilities 3,878.69 3,195.49
Total cquity and liabilities 5,084.76 7,248.37
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these linancial statements
As peyfjour report of even date attached

. LLP

hnts
Number; 101248W/W-100022

Rohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2025

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiahulls Trustee Compafiy Limited)

CIN: U65991KA2008PLCI83561
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Director
DIN: 02305074

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2025
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Ashutosh Naik

Director
DIN: 08738291

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2025



Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited)
Statement of profit and loss

(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars Notes

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from operations 13 139.32 241.00
Other income 14 336.71 180.33
Total income 476.03 421.33
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 15 2,392.78 1,995.95
Other expenses 16 10,930.02 7,374.02
Total expenses 13,322.80 9,369.97
Loss before tax (12,846.77) (8,948.64)
Tax expense
Current tax 17 - -
Total tax expense - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year (12,846.77) (8,948.64)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans - -
Income tax relating to above - = o
Other comprehensive income /(loss), net of tax i
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year (12,846.77) (8,948.64)
Earnings per equity share in INR 20
(Face value: INR 10/- per share) (31 March 2024: INR 10/- per share)
Basic (6.77) (8.25)
Diluted (6.77) (8.25)
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee

Company Limited)
Pl

CIN: U65991KA2008PLC183561
—— /

ohit Alexander Rajinder Singh Loona Ashutosh Naik

ariner Director Director
Membership No. : 222515 DIN: 02305074 DIN: 08738291
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: June 30, 2025 Date: June 30, 2025 Date: June 30, 2025



Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited)
Statement of cash flows

(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before Tax

Adjustments:

Interest Income on fixed deposits

Net gain on fair value changes

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid, net of refund

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

Cash flows generated from/ (used) in investing activities
Investment in mutual fund

Praceeds from sale of mutual fund

Purchase of fixed deposits

Reedemption of fixed deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows generated from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Net cash from financing activities (C)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts

Total eash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 5)

Notes:

(12,846.77) (8,948.64)
. (140.62)
(326.24) (34.19)
(13,173.01) (9,123.45)
178.39 428.49
918.00 (918.00)
0.23 100.00
(877.75) 2
529.44 2,843.12
113.47 (74.36)
41.29 28.53
(12,269.94) (6,715.67)
4.63 4231
(12,265.31) (6,673.36)
(12,100.00) (6,300.00)
14,394.38 269.83
. (67,350.00)
. 67,350.00
- 140.62
2,294.38 (5,889.55)
9,999.96 10,000.00
9,999.96 10,000.00
29,03 (2,562.91)
22.66 2,585.57
51.69 22.66
51.69 22.66
51.69 22.66

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) Statement of Cash Flows.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
As per our report of even date attached

Jor BSR & Co. LLP

ohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Trustee Company Limited)
CIN: U65991KA2008PLC183561
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Director
DIN: 02305074
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Ashutosh Naik
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Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited)
Statement of changes in equity

(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Amount (Rs)
As at 1 April 2023 . 5,000.00
Issue of equity shares 10,000.00
As at 31 March 2024 15,000.00
Issue of equity shares 9,999.96
As at 31 March 2025 24,999.96
B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Particulars - Total
Retained earnings
As at 1 April 2023 (1,998.48) (1,998.48)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (8,948.64) (8,948.64)
As at 31 March 2024 (10,947.12) (10,947.12)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (12,846.77) (12,846.77)
As at 31 March 2025 (23,793.89) (23,793.89)
Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even datc attached
jor BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee
Charfered Accounfants Company Limited)
Firyf Registration [Number: 101248 W/W-100022 CIN: U65991KA2008PLC183561 L’V
7 ;

ohit Alexander aj dEF—S—imona Ashutosh Naik
Partner Director Director
Membership No. : 222515 DIN: 02305074 DIN: 08738291
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: June 30, 2025 Date: June 30, 2025 Date: June 30, 2025



Groww Trusiee Limlted {Formerdy kaawn as Indlabubls Trustee Company Limlied)
Notes to the Bnanctal statements for the perfod eaded 31 March 2025

(Al amownts ave in INR thousands wnless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Groww Truster Limited {*the Company”) {carlier known os Indiabulls Truslee Company Limited (“TTCL")} is a Pubtic Limited Company domiciked in India was
incarporaled on April 10, 2008 as wiolly owned subsidiary of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited {fonnerly known as Billionbraing Garage Ventares Private
Limited) wilk the object of acting as frustee for mutuat funds, offshore funds, pension funds, provident funds, venture capital funds, insurance finds, collective or
private investient seliemies, employee wellire or compensatian schenwes or any other schemes, bonds or debentures and as sceurity trusices. The address ol its
corporate office is Vaishnavi Tech Purk, Soutk Tower, 3rd Floor, Survey No.16/1 and $722, Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hebli, Betlandus, Bangalore, Bangalore
South, Kamatoka, india, S60143,

Pursuant to Shars Purcliase Agroement dated May 11, 2021, between Geoww Invest Tech Private Limited (formcly knows as Nextbillion Technalogy Privale
Limited) ("Company”) and Tadiabulls Howsing Finance Limited (crstwhile Sponsor), and Tndiabulls Assct Managemient Compony Limited for the acquisition of 100%
shorehelding of Indiabulls Asset Manog t Company Limited {"JAMCL") and Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited (“1FCL"), all the negessary approval was
received and accardingly, the Corpany paid an aggregale purchase consideration of INR 17,562 crores (including cash and cash equivalents el INR 10,062 erores)
for the dequisition of 106% share capital of TAMCL and ITCL and all the equity shares stand to be transierred (Demat and physical) lo Greww lavest Tech Privite
Limited (formely knawn as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited) on May 03, 2023, and pursuant 1o this JAMCL asd $1'CL have bezeme the whally owned
subsidiary of Groww Invest Tech Private Linsited (formely known as Nexthillion Techrelogy Private Limited) effective (rom May 03, 2023,

Subsequently, pursuant lo shore purchase agreement dated Augost 19, 2024 executed between Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formerly known as
Bilianbrains Carage Ventures Private Limiled), Graww Invest Tech Privale Lirniled and the Company, Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formedy known as
Biflionbrains Garzge Ventures Private Limiled) acquired 100% of the share capital of Growaw Assel Managenent Limited from Groww Invest Tech Frivate Limiled.

2. Material accounting pallcles
Busls of preparatlon and presentation

The finnncial statemens of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indion Accounting Standards {Tnd AS) notitied under Seetion 133 ol the Companies Act,
2013 {the *Act'} read with the Companies (Indian Accouating Standazds) Rules, 2015 s amended from (ime 10 time and other relevam pravisions of the Act.

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Tnd AS |- Presemtotion of Finanelal Statements as natificd under the Companies { Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

‘Ihie Balance Sheel, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures nre presented i the format preseribed under Division 11 of
Sciedule [1] of 1he companies Acl, as amended (fom ime te lime hat are required lo comply with Ind AS. The Stalement of Cash Flows has been preseated as per
the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statenient of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have been prepared under Lhe historical cost convention and an acerual basis, except for centain financial assels and babilities,

Accounting policies have hees cansistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting peticy hitherta in use. The Company’s Inancial statements wre presented in Indian Rupees (INR}(Rs.), which i alsa ils functional
currency and ull valaes are rounded to the nenzest thousands, exeept when otherwise indicated.

The linanelal statements Lor the year ended 31 Macch 2025 are being wuthorized lor issue in accordance wilh u resokitios ol the direclors on June 30, 2025,

The principal accounting poficies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are sct out belaw. These policics have been congisteally applicd to oll the years
preseated, untess atherwise stated.



Groww Trustec Limited (Formerly knows as Indiabislls Trustee Campany Limited)
Notes to the fitinclal statements Far the perlod ended 31 March 2025

(A amotenits ave in INR thousands toess otherwise stated)

2, Materisl ting policies (Continued)

a. Revenue frem Coniracts with customers

Revenue (other than for those ilems 1o which Ind AS 109 Financial laslrisnents are applicable) is measwred al fir volue of (he consideration received ar receivable.
Ind AS 115, Revenye from conlracts with customens, outlines 4 single comprehensive madel of ing for revende atising from contracls with cuslomers and
supersedes current reventie recogaition guidance found within Ind ASs of secewnting en acerual basis. Revenue from contracts with cuslomers i3 recagnised when
controf of the goods or services are transferred 1o the cuslomer al an amount thot reflects the consideration 10 which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for Lthase goods ar services.

The Campany recagnises revenue from cantracls with customers based on o Give step madel as set oul in Ind AS {15

Step 41 Identify contract(s) with a enstomer: A cantract i3 defined as an agreement between two ar more parties that creales enfarcenble rights and obligations and
sets oul the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Sicp 2: Ldentily performance obligations in the conlract: A perfarmance obligation Is a promise in a contracl with a customer ta transfer a good or serviee ta (he
customer,

Step 3: Determsine he lransaction price: The transaction price is the amount ol conskleration 1o which the Company expecls 1o be entitied in exchange lor Lransferring
promised goods of services to 31 , excluding amonnts callected on behall of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate (he lransaction price lo (e peclarmance obligations in the contract: For a conlracl that has wote thay one performance nbligation, the Compay
alloeates the transactian price to vach perfoniance obligation in un amount that depicts the ansounl of considerativn to which the Company expects to be entitfed in
exchange for satisfying cach performance obligation.

Step 3: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance ebligation.

Revenue s measured based on the transaction price, which is the considerntion, adjusied for volume discounts, rebates, scheme alfowances, price concessions,
incentives, and refurns, if any, as specified in (he costracts with the customers. Revenus excludes taxes cellected from customers on Hehalf of the government.
Aceruals lor discountsfincentives and returns are estimated (using the most fikely methad} based on accumulate:! experience and underlying schienies and agreements
with customers.

The Company recagnises revenme o the fllowing sources:

() Incame Jram Irast services is recognised at o point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied

(b} Interest income is recognized using (he efizctive interest rale method,

(¢} Advances reccived from customers in respeet of conlracts ae treated as fiabilitics and adjusted against billing as per teans of the coatsact.

Pividend incame is recorded when the right to receive payment is cstablishod. Inlerest incom is recepnised using the ¢fizctive interest method.
b.  Flnanciak instruments
i Daie of Recognition

Financia$ assets and financial lisbilities are recognised in the Company’s balunce stoet when the Company becomes a party tu the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

it, Fnitial Mcasurement

Financial assels and liabilitics, with the exceplion of loans, debl seourities, deposits and barrowings are inilially recognised on the trads dale, ic. the date that the
Companiy becomes a party to he eontractual provisions &f the instrumeni. Recognised Fnancial instruiments are initially measured at Bir vahuz, Transaction costs thal
are dircctly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial aesets and Fnancial liabilities are added 1o or deducted from the fhir value of the fmancial asszls of
linancial liabifities, as apprapriate, on iniial recogrilion. Transaction costs dircetly attributable Lo the acquisition of financhl assets or firancia! liabilities at fair vahe
through profit or luss are recugnised immedintely in probit or loss,

itk Clussifh and Suth nf Myas

A. Financiul asses

Bascd en the business medel, the contractual characteristics of the financial asscts and specific clections where appropriate, the Campany classifies sl measures
financinl msscts i the llowing categaries :



Groww Trusiee Limited (Formerly known as Indlabulls Frusiee Campany Limited}
Mates to the fnanclal statements for {he pertod ended 31 March 1025

(AH amounts are in INR thaaisands unless ofherwise stated)

2. Materlal sccounting policles (Continued)

a} Amurtised cost: A financial nssels is measured ar amortised cost iT il meets bath af the following conditicns md is not designated as at Fair value through profil or
fnss (FYTPLY:
« the assel is hekl within a business model whose abjective s to hold assets to colleet contructuai cash Mlows (" Assel held ta collect contractual cash Mows'); and

« the contractual ferms of the Tanncial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash Mows that are sulely payments of principat and interest ("ST'PE) on the principal
amounl cutsianding,

Alter initial mezsuremant and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held (o colleet contraclual eash Mows and SPPL, such financial assels are

stbsequently measured at amortised cost using ofi tive interest rate (EIR'Y method. laterest income and impai expenses me recagnised in profil or foss,

Inberest incame from these financial assets & inchided in frange income wsing the BIL merbod. Any gain and loss on derecognition i ako recopnised in profit or loss.

The EIR method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of o financial instrument and of allocaling interast over the relevant period. The EIR is the rte thal
wxaglly discounls estimated farere cosh flows (incheding all fees paid o reccived that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) throngh the expected §ife of the instrument, ar, where appropriaic, a sheater period, to the net camyizg amaunt on initial recognition.

by Kair value through edher comprehensive income (FVOCH): Fianciol sssets that are held within a business medel whose objective is bath to colleet the
contractusl cash Nows aud to sell the assels, (Crntractual cash Nows al assels collected through hald and sell model) and contraciual cash fows that are SPPL, are
subsequently measured al FVOCE. Movenients in the carrying anzount of such financial assels are recogrised in Other Comprehensive Income (*OCI'), exeepl inlerest
# dividend ncome which is sccognised in profit and foss, Amounts recorded in OCT are subsequently transferred ta the statement of profit and loss in cuse of debt
instruments however, in case of equity istruments it will be dirzcily transferred to reserves. Equity instruments at FVOCT ere nol subject 1o an impairment
assessment.

¢} Fair value through profit or Joss (FVTPL): Financial assels, which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI or cither
desigy are { al FYTPL. Sut | changes in fafr vajue are recognised in profit or fss. The Company records investments in equily instruments and
mutual finds at FYTPL.

B. Fingncial Kabiliries

Det s equily instruments issued by the Company ore chissified as either fimancial liabilities or as equily in eccordance with the substance of the contractual
acrangements and the definitions of a financial fisbility and an cquity instrument.

q

{n) Equity Instrament - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets af o entily after deducting all of its liabililics. Bquity
instruments issued by the Company is cecognised at the proceeds received, net of directly at¢ributable fransaction costs.

() Financial Liabilities Financia! liabikities are mieasured al amortised cost. The carrying amounts are initially recogniscd a1 fair value and subsequently
determined based on the EIR method, Tuterest expense is recognised in profit vr loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of financial liabilities is ako recognised
in profit or Tess. The Company does nol Tave any naucial Hnbility which are measured at FVTPL.




Groww Trustee Limlted {Formerly known as Indlabulls Trustee Company Limited)
Notes to thie financial statements for the period cnded I March 2025

£4# amounis are In INR thousands unfess othenwlve stated)

2. Materlak accounting policies {Contlnued}

I order (o shaw haw Tir values have been derived, financial instruments are chassified based on o hicrarchy of vafnation techniques, os sumhsrsed below:

Level 1 1 Those where the isputs used fn the valuation ore unadjusted quoted prices from active markels for idemical assets or liabilitics that the Campany has access
to at the measuremerd date. The Company considers markels as active onty i thers are suflicient wading activilies with regards o the yolume and liquidhy of the

identicat assels or lishifities and when there are binding and cxercisable price guoles avaitable on the bafince sheel date.

Level 2 1 Those where Lhe inputs Ihal are used for valuation and are si
perind of the instrument’s life.

sificant, ars derived from directly of indirecily absenvable markel data available aver (he entire

Financial Sobilitics are carzied at smortised cosl using the effective nlerest rte method, For trade and othier payables, the carrying amount spproximates the fair vatue
duz Lo short maturity ol these instruments.

i Reclasvification:
inancial assels are nol sechissified subsequenl te their initial recognition, apan from the exceptional cirsumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line or in the pesiod the Company changes its business mode) for managing financial assets, Financial Fabilitics are siot reclassified,

w Barccognition:

{A) A finarcial assel (07, where applicable, 4 part of  fisancial asset or part af  group of similar financial assels) is derecognised when:
+ The contraciual righls to receive cash Baws from the financial asset have expired, or

+ The Conpany has transferred its rights te receive cash flows fram the asset and fhe Company bas transferred substantiatly nll the risks and rewards of the
asset, ot the Company has neither transfemed nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards of the assel, but has transfermed contral of the asset.

TT the Company neither transfers not retains substantislly all of the risks and rewards of ewnership azd continues 1o contred the transfirred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in he asset and an associated Hability for (he amount it may have (o pay.

On darcengnition ala finanuinl assel, the differcnce betweoen the carrying amount ol the assel (or the carrying amount aflacaled to the portion of Ihe asset
dercengnised) and the sim of (i) the censideration reecived {inclading any sew ssset oblained less any new liabiliy assumed) and (iy any cumulative gain or luss
that had hoen recogaised in OCI is recagnised in profit or loss (exeept for equity insirumsents measured al FYOCT).

(H) A financal [iabHity is derccognised when the obtigation under the liability is dischorged. eancelied or expires. Where an existing financial liabifity is replaced by
another frem Lhe sume lender on substantially different Lerms, or the tenms of an existing liabifty see substantialy modificd, such an exchange or modifieation is
treated os 2 derccognition of the original Tiability aud Lhe recoguition of a now liability, [n this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 1erms is
recognised at Tair value. The difference batween the carrying value of the eriginal Gnancial Hability and the new financial Hability with wodilied terms is recoguised
in profit or loss.

vi Qffsetting:
Financial assets and financial Fubililics are offict and the net amount presented in the balance shoet when, and only when, (he Company currently has a kgally
enfarceuble right to sct off the amounts and it intends cither lo setile (hem on a net basis or (o realise the asset and sertte the lability simultancously.

wit, Irpairment of financial assets:

A. Trade receivables
The Company applics the Ind AS 109 simplificd approach to measuring expeeted eredit losses which uses a liktine expected loss allowance (ECL) for 52 rade
receivables. The application of simplified approactt daes not require the Company to track changes In eredit risk. Rather, il recognises impainnent loss atfowance
hased on lifetime ECLs at zach reporting dale, right from is Fecogni

To measure the expecled credil losses, lrade receivables have been grouped hased on sharcd credil risk chasncteristics and the days post due. The expeeted loss rales
ave based an average ol Wistowical loss rate adjasted te reflcct gamrent and avaitable forward leoking infarralion affeeting the ability of the custonicrs 1o settle the
receivables,

B. Other Finuncial Assets
A finuneial asset is written oft when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the con

il eash flows.

The gross carrying ameunt ef a finaneial assel & wrilten af¥ {either partially or in Iull) 1o the extert that there is no realislic prospect of recavery. This is generally the
case when the Comypany detcrmines that the dubtor does not have assets or sovrees of income that coukd generate sufficient cash fows (e repay the amounts subjec
10 the Write - off, However, financial assets thal are written off could still be subject 1o enforcement activities wiider the Company's recovery provedures, taking e
accaunt legal advice where appropriale, Any recoveries mude are recognised in profil o loss.

t.  Employee Benefils
L Short-terw emplayee benefits
Short-term cntployee benedits include salaries and short-term bonus. A liability is recognised if the Company has a present legat or canstruclive obligntion lo pay this

amounl as a result af past service provided by the employee, and the elligation can be estimated zelinbly, These costs are recognised as an expense in (he Slatement off
Profit and Loss s the undiscounted amount expected to be patd over the period of services renidered by the emiployees to the Company.



Groww Trustee Limited {Farmerly known as Indtabulls Trustec Company Limited)
Notes to the Anancial staterneats for the peried ended 3§ March 2025

(At aninients are in INR thonsands unfess otherwise stated)

2, Material accannting palicies (Continued)

ii. Oratuity
Every employce is <ntitied 1o o benefit cqaivalent te 15 days salury last drawn for each completed year of service in fine with The Paymenl of Gratuity Act, 1972, The
same is payable al the time of separation from the Campany or retirement, whichever is earlicr, The hencfit vest after five years of continuous service.

The Compony's graluily schenw is o detined benefil plan. The Company's nel pbligarion in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme i caleulated by cstimating the
amaunt of fisture benefit that the employees have carned in retum for Lheir service in the current and prior perind. Such benefil is discounted ta determing ils present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets, it any, is deducted.

The present valie of the obligation arder such benelit plan is detzrmined bused on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit oredit Methed which recognises cach
perind of services s giving Tise to additiona) usil of employee benefil entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build wp the final obligation.

The obligation is meastred at present values of estimated fulire cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present valug are based on the market
vields un Government Securitics s st the balanee sheet date,

Remcasuremant gains and losses arising lrom experience adjustments and chanpes in acluarial assumptions are recognised in Whe period in which hey eecur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They ore included in retained camings in the stalement of changes in cquily and in the batance sheel.

i, Provident fiind

The contribution o provideat fumd s considered as defined contribation plan. The Company has no ebligation, ether than the contribulion payable to the provident
fund. The Company recagnises contrlbution payable to the prevident fund scheme as an expense, when om employee renders the relited service,

iv. Compensaled absence

The eligible employees can carry forward & partion of the ilized accrued comp | absences and utilize it in future service periads or receive cash
compensalion on annua! basis or on termination of employment whichever is carlier, The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period
it which the employee renders the serviees that increase the entitlement, The obligation is measured on the basis of unutilised leave bakinec in the statement of profit
andl loss as and when they are incumred.

v, Share based payurent arrangements

The cost of equily selticd share-based payment Lransactions with cinployces is measured by reference to the fir value of the oplions using option pricing modal al the
date on which the oplions are granted which lakes into account market conditions and nos-vesting canditions.

The fair vakee is expensed over the period unlil the vesting dale with recognition ol a corresponding liabillly to pay Ullinate Halding Cempany based on a cost
recharge arvangement.

.  Borrowing costs

Expenses related 1o barrowinyg cost are accounted using effective interest rate, Borrowing costs are interest and vther costs (including exchange differences sehting to
farefgn currency bormowings (o the extent that they are regarded a5 nn adjustment 10 interest casts) incurred in connection with the barrowing of fimds. Borrowhig
costs directly altribulable 1o acquisition or construction of an assel which necessurily take o substantial peried of time 1o get ready lor their inlended use are
capitalised 45 part of the cost of that assct. Other borrewing custs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The difference between the
discounted amount mobilised and redemplion value of cammercial papers is recogrised in the statement of profit and loss over the lite of the insizument using 1he
Tin.

. Foreign Exchange Transactions

“Transactions in forcign eurrencics are recorded al the rate of exchange prevailing on the dale of the ransaction. Exchange differences arising on setulement of revenue
transactions are recoptised i the statenent of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabil contracted in foreign currencies are restated at 1he rate of exchange
at the Dalance Shect date. Nan-manetary assels and Habilities that are measured at fair vahic in a foreign curmency are translated ilo the functional currency at
the exchamge rale when (he Tir value wis determined. Non-mongtary assets and Tiabililizs hal are measared based on Wslorical cost in o foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate ot the date of the transaction.




Groww Trustee Limdted (Formeyly known as Indiabuils ‘Trustee Company Limited)
Notes to the Jinancial statements Tar the perlod ended 3 March 2023

AN amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. Materdul accounting policles (Continued)
k. Leases

‘The determination of whether an arangemen is a lease, or conlains a lease, is based on the suhstance of (he arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the armamyement is dependent on the use of a specitic usset or asscts or whether thie arrangement conveys a righl lo use the assal. The Company assesses
whether # coniract contains a lease, al inception of a vontract, A conlract is, or containg, o Jease if the contract conveys the right 1 controd the use of an ideatified
assel f01 a period of Lime in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right Lo controf (he use of an identified asses, the Campany assess
whetlier (i) e conleact invedves the usc of an identified assets; (i) the Company has subslantially all the econemic benefits fram use of the assels through the pediod
af the lease and (i) the Company has the right to direst the use of the asset.

Al Uhe dare of commencement of Lhe lease, (he Campany recognises a right-ol-use asscls (ROU) and a corresponding leass fiabifity for all leasc arsangements in which
it 8 @ lessee, except for leases with a tenn of 12 month or less (shori-term feases) and Tow vakie leases. For these short-term and low valite leases, the Company
recagises the lease payments as an operating expense on & straighl-ling basis over lhe term ol the lease.

Cerlain lense amangements includes the aptions to exiend or terminate the kase befisre the end of the lease term. ROU asseis ad lease liubilities includes these
oplions whe it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The cost of the Hght-al-use assels comprises the amount el the initial reasurenicat of the lease liubifity, any lease payments made at or before the inception dale of
the lease, kusa sey lease incentives reecived. Subsequently, the right-of-use asscls is measured al cost less any accumulated depreciation 2wl accunnitated impairment
fnsses, if any. The right-of-use assels is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date over (he shorter of fease term or aseful lif of right-of
8¢ assels.

For kease liabilities at neeption, the Company mensurces the fease Hability at the present valae of the fease payments that are nol paid at hat date. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. 11 that rate is not readily determined (he leuse paymenls arg discounted
using Lbe incremenial borrowing sate.

Lease liability has been included in borrewing and ROU assct has been separuiely presented in the Bakance Sheet and kase payments have been classificd as linnncing
vash flows,

i, Investment In subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured al cost less accumubited impairment, iFany.
¢.  Provisions, contingent llabillties and contingent assets

A provisien is recogzised when the Compatty 5as a present obligation a3 a resuit of a past evenl asd it is probabie that an sulfow of cmbodying ecanomic henefits witl
b required to setile the obligation and there &5 2 reliable estimale of the anwounl of the obligation, Provisions are measured al the best estimate of the expenditure
required to seltle the present cbligation at the Balance sheet (ate. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected flure cash flows (representing the best
estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation at the balacce sheel datc) at a pre-tax rle that retlecls current markel assessments of the time
vahie of money and the risks specific to the lisbility. Provisions are reviewed at each balince sheel date and adjusted 10 effect current maungement eslimates.

Contingent fiabilitics are not recognised but are disclosed in he notes forming part of financial statements. Contingenl assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in
the finanecint statements. Cantingent lisbilities are recognised when these is possible obligation arising fiom past events, the existencs of which will be confirmed anly
Iy Ihe occurrence or nen-occurrence of aNe OF Mese tncerain fture evests net wholly within the control of the Company.

£ Income Tax

Tncome (aX expense comprises carrent and deferred lax. It is recogrised in statement of profil and loss exeept to the extent Lkal it refales Lo ilems recogaised directly
in eguity or in OCL

£ Coervent Tax
Currenl tax is maasured al the amaunt expected to be paid in respect ol laxabile income lor she yeor in uccordance with the Incotne Tax Acl, 1961,
Current income Lax relating (o llems recognised outside prafit or loss is recagnised autsile protit er loss (zither in ather comprebensive incoww: or in equity). Current

L items are recoynised in correlation to the underlying ransaction cither in OCIL er directly in cquily. Management periotlicaly evaluates positions taken in the 1ax
yetums with respeet 2o situativns in whicl applicoble tax regulations are subject ta interpretation nnd establishes provisions where nppropriate,

Current 1ax asseis and current (ax liahifities are offset only if the Campany has a legaity enforccable right to set off the Tecagnised amounts, and it intends tn realise the
asset and seltle the liability on a net basis or simulianeously.




Groww Frusiee Limited (Formerly known as Endiabulls Trustee Company Limited)
Naotes Lo the financial statements for the perlod ended 31 March 2025

(AN amounts ave in INR thousands wnless otherwise stated)

2. Malerial accounting policies (Condinoed)
i) Daferrad Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect on temporary differences arising betsween the tax bases of assels and linbilities and their camrying ankunis in the (nanciat
statenments.

Delerred Lax assets arising mainly on account of carry forward fss
ofits realisation, supporied by convineing evidence.

and unabsorbed depreciation under tax jaws are recognised only if there is reasnnuble certointy

Deferred tax 1s an accannt of other lemporary diflerences are recogniscd only Lo the extenl that there is reasanable certainly that sufficicnt futurs laxable income
will be available against which such deferred fax assets can be realised,

Deferred lax assets wnd labilities ane measured using 1ax rates and tax laws that have been enacied or substantively cnacled at the Balance Sheet date. Changes in
deferred 1ax assets / lisbilities on account of changes in ciscted tax rates are given effect 16 in the standalone statenent of profit and loss in the periad of the change.
The camying amount of deferred tax assels are reviewed ot ench Balance Sheet date.

Delirred tax assers and defered tox liabilitics are off sel when Lkere is # legally enforceable righl 1o set-off assets against liabilities representing currenl tax and where
the deferred 1ax assets and deferred lox liabilitics relate te Laxes on income lovied by the sume goveming taxation Jaws.

. Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equfvalents includes cash on hand and salanee with bank in corrent accounts, demand deposits with hanks, other shon-term highly liquid investiments
with eriginal materities ol thiree nwonths or less that ste readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which aze sulject 1o an insignificant risk of changes i value,
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash ord cash equivalents cash and short-term deposiis are considerad intcgral part of the Company's cash
Tmanagement.

h.  Bank balances othier than cash and cash equivalents

PBank balances other thaz cash and cash equivalznls includes fixed deposits with barks with original maturities of twelve months ar less.

i, Impalrmene of zon-financiil assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An assel is impaised when the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amaunt. An impairment loss is charged 1o the Statement of Prolit and Loss in the year in which an assel is identificd as impaired. An
mpairment loss is reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amaunt docs nol exceed the carrying amaunt that would have been determined il ne impainuent loss
3ad previously been recognised,

An asset’s recoverable ameunt is the higler of an assel's or cash-generating unit's (CGUY) net selling price ad its value in use. The recaverable amount is delermined
for an individual asset, unless e asset does not generate cash inflows (hat are largely indupendent of those from arher asscis or groups of ussels. Where the carrying
amount ofan asset or CGU exceeds its recovemble amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amount. In pssessing vahic in use,
Ihe estimated fire cash fows are discounted 1o Lheir present valug using a pre-lax discount rate that rellects cumment markel asscssnies af the time vakie ol money
and the risks specilic to the assel. In determining net selling price, resent market lransaclions are taken inle account, if avaifible. 10 na such Iransactions can be
fied, an appropriate valuation model is used,

ider

jo Scgment reporting

The ultimate holding company prepares the consolidated financial statements. In secordance with Ind AS 108 on sperating scgmenls, the Comnpany has not disclosed
the segments information in the standalone financial statements.

Based on the munagement approach s defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM cviuates the Corspany's perfi and allocat s based on an analysis of
various performance indicators by business ts and g phic scgments. The Board of Directars who are sesponsible for allacating resurces and assessing
perfarmance of the aperating segments have been identilied as the CODM.

k. Earalnps per share

The Company reparts hasic and diluted eamings per equity shure. Busic eamings per equily share have been computed by dividing nel profitfloss atributsble to the
cquity share holders for the year by the weighted average nimber of cquity shaves otstanding during the year, Dilsted carnings per equity share have been campuled
by dividing the net profit atiributable to the equity share holders aflter giving mpaet of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average numbar of
cquity shares and dilative patential equity shares outstanding during the perodiyear, except where the resulis are anti-dilutive,

1. Cash flow statement
Cash flaws arc reparted using the indirect method. whercby profit before tax is adjusted for the effecls of iratisaclions of a non-cash nalure and any deRereals or

acensals of past or fuliire cash ceeeipts or payments, The cash Nows Gom regular revenue geserating, investing and financi s of the Catnpany are
segregaied.




Graww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indlabulls Trustee Company 1imlted)
Notes to the financia) stalements far the period ended 31 March 2025

(AN amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise siated)

2. Material ting policics {Continued)

m. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial stalements in conformily with Ind AS requires that the management make estimales and assumplinns thal effect the opplication of
accuunting policies and the reported amounts of asscls and Sinbilitics, income and expenses. Actual results coulid differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assusyptions ace reviewed an an ungoing basis. Any revision to sccotmting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and fatnre years, In particutar, information
abowt areas of significant estination wncertainty and critical jud; i applying ling policks (hal have a significant effecl on the amounts recognized in the
Tinancial stalemenis are included below:

Fstimates and uoderlying assumptions ore reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions te accounting estimates arc recognised prospectively.

Information sbowt assumptions and eslimation uncertuiaties that have a significant tisk of resulling it & materizl adjustment is incladed in the following noles:

(i3 Depreciation and amertizaiion

Depreciation and amortisation is based on mausigement estimites of the fulire usefid lives of the property, plant and equipment and inlangible asseis. Estimstes may
change due to technological developments, competition, changes in markel conditions and other faclars and may result in changes fin the estimated useful ife and in
1l depreciation and amortisation charges.

(i) Recognition and measurcment of defined benefit abliyations

The olsligation arsing 1kpm detied berefit plon is determined on lhe basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumplions iiclude discaunt rte, trends in salscy
escalation, aciuarial rates and life expectaney, The discount rate is detennined by reference ta market viclds at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
The period to matarity of the wderlying bands corsespond to the probable maturicy of the post-ersployment benefit obligations, Due 10 complexilies involved in the
valuation and iis loty term nature, defined benefit obligation s sexsitive tv changes in these assumplions.

(iil) Fair valne of financial instruments

Financial instruments are required 10 be fair vahied as al the balance sheet dale as provided in Ind AS 109 and End AS 113, Being a critical estimale, judgement is
exercised lo determine the carmrying vakics. The Fair valde of fvancial instruments that are untisted and not traded in i active market is determined at fir valoes
assessed hased on recent transactions entered o with third partics, hased ou valeation dane by exiernal appraisers <le., os applicabike.

(i) Expected credit losses an firancial assels

The Company recognizes loss allowanees for expected credit losses on its finnucial assels measured at amortized cost. At each reporting dale, ihe Company assesses
whether financial assets cried at amortized cast aze credit- impaired. A financiad usset s ‘eredit impaived” when one er more cvents that bave & detrnental impact vn

the cstivated fatune cash flows of the finuneial asset have oceurred.

{v) Deferecd Tax

Delirred tax assets and liabilities are recogrized far the fiture tax consequences of temporary diffarences belween the carrying values nf assets aid liabitities and their
respeclive tax bases. Defered tax assets ore recognized Lo the extent thal i is probable that future taxable income will be ovailable against which the deckctible
temporary differences could be utitized.

fvl) Provisiap and cotsingencies

The recoguition and measurement of other provisions are based on the dsscssment of the probabifity of an owiflow of resources, and on past experience and
circumsiances known at the reporting date. The aetual outflow of resources at a futwre date may therefore, vary from the mmount included in ather provisions.

(vif) Share baved payments

Exstimatiny fair valic fox share based payment requires determination of the most apprepriate vatuation mutkl. The estimale also sequires determination of the most
appropriate fputs Lo the valuation mode! including the expected life of the option, volatitity and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

fviii) Leases

In determining whether an amangement is, or contains o Jease is hased on the substance of the arrangement ol the inception of the kease. The amngement is, or
cantains, 1 fease date i Tallilment of the arrangemeal is dependent an the use ul'a specific assel or assels and Ihe rangement comveys A right to use the assel, cven if
that right it not explicitly speeified in the amangement,

n, Opeeating cyele

Bused on Lhe time invatved between sequistion of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and ensh equivalents, the Group has indentified twelve months as
its operating cycle for determining current and son-current elassification of assels and Fabilitics In the balance sheet.

o, Recend Pronowncenicnis

sucd Tram lime to lime. For the year eaded 31 March 2025, MCA las notificd Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracls and amendments 1o T AS 116 — Leases, relating
lo sale and Yeascback transactions, applicable Lo the Company w.e.il 01 Aprit 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pranouncements i based on iis v
has determined that it dees not kave any impact in ils financial stalements.

Ministry of Carporate Affiirs (“MCA™") notifies new slandards or amendments 1o the exisling lards wnder Companizs {(Indian A ting Standards) Rulkes as

ation




Groww Trustee Limited {(Formerly known as Indiabulls Trastee Company Ehniled)
Nates tn the Anancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amaiiss are in INR thausands unless otherwise stated)

J Current Investment

Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Measured at falr volue throvgh profit or loss

Jovestment it Mutual funds 4,080.05 £,064.19
Total investments 4,0%6.05 6,064.10
Aggregote amount of unquoted investment - N

Aggrepate amounl of guoted invesiment 4,096.05 6,064,19

4 Trade receivables

As at Asal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Crrrent
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 49.87 228.26
Net Frade recelvnhbes 49.87 118,26

Trade Recelvables Ageing

Outstunding as at Maveh 31, 2025 for foltowing periods from date of iransaction

Pariiculars Total
. Eess than 6 moaths - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Not due
6 monihs 1 year
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good - 44 87 - - - - 49.87

(i) Undisputed Trade Reccivables - whicls have - - - - - - -
significant increase in eredit risk
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired B - - - - - -
(%) Dispuicd Trade Reccivables—onsidered good - - - - - - .
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have B - B - - - -
significant incrense in credit risk
(iv} Disputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired - - - - - - .

Less: Lass allowance -
Add: Yebilted revenue -

Total 49.87

Gutstanding as at March 31, 2024 for foltowing perinds from date of transaction

Particuiars Less than 6 months « 1-2 years 2-3 years Marc than 3 years Total
Net due 6 months 1 year

(i) Undispulcd Trade receivables — considered good - B - B - - -
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivabies - which have - - - - - . -
significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undispuled Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - M - -
(i1i) Disputcd Tracle Receivables—considesed good - - - - - - -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - .
significant increase in credit risk
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — cregil impaired - - - - - - _

fess: Loss allowance ~
Add: Unbilied revenue 228.26

Total 128,26

5 Cush and cash equivalents

Asal As at
31 March 2025 3t March 2024

Balances with banks
- in currenil accounts . 51.69 22.00

Tatal 5149 22.66

& Other financind asseis

Asat Asal
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024

Cnrrent
Receivable $rom related parlies - $18.00

Total - 3§.00

7 Qther sssels

As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Non-current
(Unseciired, considered good)
Balance with povernment authorirties 876.75 -

Total 876.75 -

Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advauces lo supplicrs .25 1.48

Total 525 148




Groww Trustee Limited (Formerty known ss Indiabulls Trustee Company Eimited)
Nates to the lrancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al ts are it INR th ds unless otherwise siated)

8 Share capital

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 Mareh 2024

Number of shares Anpient Number of shares Amnient
Aunthorised siire capital
Equity Shares of INR (0/- {31 March 2023: ENR 18/-) 30,00,000.00 30,600.00 15,00,000.00 15,090.00
30,06,000.00 30,600.00 15,00,009.00 15,00.0¢
Fssued, subseritied and paid-up share copital
Equity shares of par valie of INR 104 (31 Murch 2023; INR 10/) 24,99,996.04 24.999.56 15,00,000.00 15,000.00
24,99 994.00 24,999.96 15,06,400,08 15,040.00

(1) Reconcilintion of shares outstanding at the beginaing and st the erd of Lhe reporting year

As at 31 March 2025

As at 11 March 2024

Number Amount
Equlty shares*
Al the commencement of the yeat 15,00,060.00 15,000.00 5,60,000.60 5,80000
Adld ; Tssued during the year 9,99.996.00 5,99%.96 10,00,000.00 10.008.00
At the end of the year 14,99,996.00 24,999.96 15,64,000.60 15,000,00

(i) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Compasy has anly ene class of equity share, having a par value of INR 10/-{31 March 2023: TNR 10/} per sh

arc. Every member holdieg equily shares therein shall have voting rights in

propartion Lo their share of the paid up equity share capital. The halder of the equity shares shali be entitled 1o dividend s and wher declared by the Company in praportion to the number of
shares held. In the event of liguidation of the Company, the helders of the equity shases wisl be entithed to share in the residual asscls of the Company. The distributien will be in proportion to

the number of equity shares held.

(¢} Particwlars of Skaves held by holding/ witimate hokding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ assoclates:

Name of the sharcholder

Asat
31 harch 2024

As at 3 March 2025

Equity shares with vating rights

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formerly known as Billionbrains

Garage Venlures Privale Limiled)

24,99,996.010 -

Groww lnvest Tech Private Eimited (Formely known as Nextbillion - 15,00,000.00
Technology Private Limited)
(2} Particulars of sharekolders hulding muve than §% shures of 4 class of shares
As at 31 March 2025 As at 3 March 2024
wr haldi " o
Narae uf the shaycholder Number of shares Yo hulding Number of shares o holding
held held
Billionbrains Gatage Ventures Limited (formerly kuown as Billienbrains 24,99,996.00 104% - -
Garage Ventures Private Limited}
Groww Tnvest Tech Privale Limited (Fosmely knewn as Nextbillion - - 15,04,000,00 100%
Technatogy Private Limited)
24,99,996.00 0% 15.00,000.00 160%
(&) Partéculars of Shareholding
Name of the shareholder Asat 31 March 2825 Asat 31 Mareh 2024
No. of Shares % ef tota] shares Nu. of Shares % of total sheres
Rillionbrains Garage Ventures Limsiled (Formerly knownz as Billionbrains 24,99,956.00 100% - -
Garape Ventures Private Limited)
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion - - 15,00,000.80 100%

Technology Private Limited)

(N Aggregate number of sharcs Issucd for consideration other than cash during the period of five years Immediately preceding the reporting date

There are no shares allotted as fully paid by way of bonus shares or ntloted as fally paid up pursuant to cantract without consideration other than cash, or bought back during (ke peried of five

years immediately preceding the reporting date,



Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trusice Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
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are in INR th ds unless otherwise staled)
Other equity
As at Asat
31 March 4125 31 March 2024
Retained carnings {i) (23,193.89) (10,347.12)
Tolal ather equity {23,793.89) (140,047.12)
Retained earnings
Asal Asut
3t March 2025 31 March 2024
Opgening hakince (10,947.12} {1,998,48}
Add: Profit/{Loss) during the year (1284677 (8.948.64)
Clasing halunce (23,7931.8%) {10,947.12)

Nature and purpose of reserves
Retained earnings:

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the epcrations which is retained by the C

profit (loss) afler tax is transferred (rom the statement of profit and foss 10 relained eamings.

18 Trade payables

ompany is recognised and accumulated under the heading "Retaised Earnings". Al the end of the year, the

Asat
31 March 2025

As at
31 Maveh 2024

Crerrent

Total sutstanding dues of micro entevprises and small enterprises (refer note 22)
Total outstanding ducs of credilors ofher than micro enterprises and small cnferprises

- Payable to refaled parly 769.12 1,8£3.04
- Qiher rade payable 2.603.44 1,030.08
Total trade payables 3,371.56 2.843.12
Trade Payables Apeing
March 31, 202§
Particulurs Outstanding for fullawing pexinds from dse date of pavinent
Notdue | Less than i 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Year
(i) MSME - B - - - -
(ii) Others - 195.01 36.00 - 23icl
(i) Disputed Dues- MSME - - - - - -
(iv) [Nsputed Dues- Others - - - - - 304145
{v} Unbilled 3,371.56
Total
March 31, 2024
Partlcubars Outstanding for following perinds from due date of paymgnt
Not due | Less than 1 1-2 years 1-3 years More thun 3 years Fotal
YEar
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(ii) Others - - - - - -
(iis} Disputed Dues- MSME - - - - - -
(iv} Disputed Dues- Gthers - - - . - 2.843.12
(v) Unbilled 2.843.12
Total
Trrovisings
As at As at

38 March 2025

31 March 2024

Non-current
Provision {if praluily

69.42

28.53

Totad

6982

18.53

Other lEabilities

Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 Muarch 2024
Crrrent
Statutory ducs payable 437.31 32384
Togal atleer current lighitities 437.31 32384




Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited)
WNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts arve in INR thousairds unless otherwise stated)

13

14

15

16

Revenue from operations

Parti For the year ended  For the year ended
articulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fees and commission income 139.32 241.00
Total revenue from operations 13932 241.00
Revenue from contracls with customers disaggregated on the basis of geographic region is as below
Particalars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Domestic 139.32 241.00
Export - "
Taotal Revenue from operations 13931 241.60

For the year ended

Particular
articulars 31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Services transferred al a point in time 139.32

241.00

Total Revenue from eperations 139.32

241,06

Other inconie

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:

(i} Interest Income on fixed deposits - £40.62
Net gain an fair vafue changes on financial instruments designated at faiv value through profit or
loss on investments

(i) Realised gain on sale of mutual fund 250.61 0.88

(ii) Unrealised gain on mutual fand 75.63 3331
Interest on income tax refund 1.36 4.52
Others 9.11 -
Total 336.71 180.33

Employee benetit expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, atlowances and bonus 2,311.85 1,935.60
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 13.65 -
Staff welfare expenses 37.95 31.82
Gratuity 29.33 28.53
Total 21,392.78 1,995,95

Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
35 Mareh 2024

Professional and consulting charges 9,745.71 6,525.88
Rent and maintenance charges 205.68 227.14
Rates and taxes 207.29 62.62
Travelling and conveyance charges §7.70 -
Payments to Auditors

- Statutory Audit 700.00 550.00
Miscellancous cxpenses 53,64 8.38
Total 10,934.02 7,374.02




Groww Trustee Limlted (Furmerly known as Indubulis Trustee Company Limited)
Naotes tn (ke finaneial statemients for the year ended March 31, 2025
(A are in INR i iv unfess othervise stated}

17 Income Taxes

A. Amount reeognised in Statement of profit or loss

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Currenl tax - N
Total corrent {ax expense - -

Deferred tax
In regpect of current year - -
Totat deferred tax expense - -

Income tex expense reporied In the stad ¢ of Profit and foss = -

B. Reconclllation of effective tax rute

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particu!
prieans 31 March 2025 31 March 2624
Prolit/(Loss) belore income 1ax expense (12,846.71 (8,948.64)
Tax al Indian tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2024 : 25.168%) - -
Effect of
Tax on unrecognised fax losses - -
Tax impact of carlier ycars -
Tax on expense noj 1ay deduciible - -
Taotal tax expense - -
C, Current tax assct (net)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Curren tax asset {net) 9.15 13.78
D, Unrecagniscd deferred tax asscls
Purticulars® As at March 31, 2628 Ag at March 31, 2024

Gross Amount  Unrecagnised Gross Amount Uorecognised fax

tax effect effect

Tax losses (business losses) 21,583.49 543213 3.948.64 2,252,19
Tax losses {(unabsorbed depreciation) - - - -
Toiak unrecognised deferred fax assels 2£,583.49 5.432.13 8,948.64 1,252.19

+The Campany has not recognised deferred tax asset as deferred tax sssets should be recognised and carried forward enty to the extent that there is a reusonable certainty that sufficient
Fature lzxable incame will be available against which such deferred tax asscts can be realised.

The space has been left blank intentionatly
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18 Financial instruments - Fair vialues and risk mansgement
A Accounting classilieations and fair valees
Fair valucs are categorised into different fevels in a fair value hiersrchy based ou the inputs used in the vatuation techniques as follows:
Level 1 - Quated prices (unadjusied) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics
Leves 2 - luputs ather than quoted prices included within Level | that are abservable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. 2s prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices}
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the Fair value hicrarchy

As at 31 March 2025

Carrying value IFair valoe
Particulars FVTPL.  TVOCI  Amartised  Total catrying Level Levet 2 Level 3 Tatal
Fimanciat assets
[ovesimenlds 4,096.05 - - 4,096.05 4,096.05 - - 4,696.05
Trade reecivables - - 49.87 49.87 - - B -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 51.69 51.69 - - - -
GOther current assels - - - - - - - -
Other financial assels - -
4,096.45 - 101.56 4,197.61 4,096.05 - - 4,096.05
Financial Habilities
Trade payables - - 3,371.56 3.371.56 - - - -
- - 3,371.56 3,371.56 - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars FVIPL  FVOCE  Amortised  Total carrying Level [ Level 2 Lovel 3 Total
CQSLs§ amount
Financial assets
fnvesiments 6,064.19 - - 6,064.19 6,064.19 - - 6,064.19
Trade reccivables - - 22826 228.26 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 22.66 22.66 - - - -
Other current assels - - - - - - - -
Other financial assets 918.00 918.00
6,064.19 - 1,168.92 7,233,114 6,064,19 - - 6,064.19
Financial labifities
Trade payables - - 2,843,512 2 843,12 - - « -
- - 2,843.82 2,843.12 - - - -

The company has tot separatety disclosed the fair valves for financial assets and Habilities other than investments, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of the
fair values.

B Meagurement of fakr values
Valuation lechnique used to detenmine fair values:
Specific valuation technigue 1o value Fnancial instraments like:
i. Use of quoled markes prices for financial instruments traded in active mackels,

{ Financial risk management
The Company has exposure (0 the following risks arising from financial instruimenis:
{i) Credid risk;
{ii) Liquidity risk; and
{iid) Market risk

i. Risk management framework

Fhe Company's board of dircctors and the risk committe has overall respensibilily fer the establishient and oversight of the Company’s risk management Tamework. The Company's risk
management poicics are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 10 sel appropriste risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
maragement policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control enviromment in which ail employees understand their roles and obligations,

il, Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty %o 3 financial instrument fails 10 meet its conteactual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company’s receivables from cuglomers, Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institalions, a5 well as eredic exposure to clients, inchuding teade seceivable. The
maximum exposure (o credit risk is equal lo the carying value of the fincial assets. The objective of managing countemparty eredil risk i3 w prevent Tosses in financial assels. The
Company assesses the credil quality of the counterparties, tnking into acceunt their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The allowance for lifetime expecied credit loss on trade receivables for the years ended Mareh 31, 2025 and 2024 was INR Nil.

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivilenls is limiled as the Company generally invests in deposils with banks and financial inslitulions with high credit tatings assigned by domestie credit
Tating agencics.
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18 Finaneial instruments — Fair values gnd risk manazement (continued)

4, Liguidity visk

Liguidity risk is the sisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeling the ehligations associated with its financial liabilities that ave settled by delivering cash or anather financial
assel, The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient fiauidity to meet its liabititics when fhey are due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without sncurring umceeptable losses or risking damage to the Conpany’s reputation.

The Company's prisicipal sources of liquidity arc cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations The Company has managed Hs liquidity and working
capital requirements through eash generated from aperations and through intermittent shor term borrowings. The Companry has sufficient short term fund based lines, which provides
healiby liguidity and these carry highest credit quality rating from reputed credit rating agency, henee no liguidity risk is pereeived.

The following are the remaining contractual matirities of financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The amaunts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and
exclude the inypact of petting agreements.

Cantractual cash Hows
Carrylng amount 6 months or less  Bucin 6-12 Duein1-2year Dug More than

31 Murch 2025

months 2 years
Naon-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 3,371.56 3,37L.50 - - -
3,371.56 3,371.56 - - -
Contractual cash Mows
31 March 2024 Carrying amaunt 6 months or less  Dueln6-12 Ducinl~2  Due More than
months year 2 years
Nou-derivative financial liabilitics
Trade payables 2.843.12 2.843.12 - - -
2,843.52 184302 - - -

iv. Market risk

Market risk s the risk that the Tair value or future cash flows of u financial instrament wilt fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comptises of three types of risks:
intcrest rale risk, price risk and currency risk. Financial instrumnents atfeeted by market risk includes trade reccivable/payable, other financial asscls and fabilitics. The Company is nol
exposed to any significant market risks.

Titferest rate risk

Tnterest rate risk is the risk that the faic value or future cash tlows of a finsncisl instrument will fuctvate because of changes in market inlerest rates. ‘The interest rate risk can also impact
the provision for retital benefits. The Company generally utilises fixed rate borrowings und therefore not subject to interest rate sk, since neither the carrying anount nor the future cash
fows witl fucluate because of change in the markel inlerest rates. The Compauy is not exposed to significant interest rale risk as al the respective reporling dates.

Curreney risk

The Company has nol enlered o any foreign cusrency fransactions and i not exposed to foseign exchange risk arising from recagnised assets and liabilitics denominated in a cuency
that is not the functional currency of the Company. The Company did not have any foreign currency receivables and payables as at March 31, 2024 { Previous year: Rs. Nif).

v, Canital Management

The Company’s pelicy is fo nsinlain a sirongt capital base so as te maindain investor, credites and market confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business. The Company
monitars the retums on eapitai snd its ohjeelive when managing capilat is to maintain an optimal structure 5a 25 10 maximize sharcholder vaiue,

The space has been lefi blank intentionadly
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19 Cantingent Eahillies and commitments (1o the extent not provided for)

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2023

A ol
3 March 2624

a} Contingent Linbfﬁtics
L) Commitments

Estinated amoum of contracts remaiaing to be exceuted on capital aceount and not provided fug :

©) Claims against the Company nal acknowledged as debls

The Company did stot have any long term comtracts incheding derivative comtracts far which there were any muaterial foresceable losses.

) Earnings per share (EPS)

The folawing table sets forth the computatin of basic and diluted eurnings per share:

Particulars

Far the year ended

31 March 2015

3E March 2624

Farnings

Prolit/ (Lass) fier Lhe year attributable ta equity shareholders for calculation of hasic and diluted EPS (In INR thovsands)

(12,346.77)

{K,048.64)

Shares

Weighted averane number of cquity shares oulsianding during the year tor calculation of basic EPS (3n thousands) * 1,897.26 1,083.56
Eifect of dilulive palential cquity shares - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for calcutation of diluted EPS (In t ds) i,897.26 1,084.56
Basic eurnings per shure (6,77) {B.26)
Diluted carnings per share {6.77) (4.25)
Nominal valuc per share 10.00 .08

21 Related party disclosures

As per Indian Aceounting Standard on related party disclosures (Ind AS 24), the names of the related parties of the Compuny ace us foltows:

A Nanies of related pardies snd related party relatienship with whem transactions have taken place

Name

Type

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limiled (forinerly known as
Rillionhrains Gazape Ventares Private Limited)

Halding company (w.e.l Angust 22, 2024}

Groww Invest Tech Privale Limited (Formely known as
Nexlbillion Technolopy Private Limited)

Hulding company (Upta August 06, 2024), Fellow Subsidiary (w,e.f Angust 22, 2024)

Groww Assct Management Linmited

Fellow Subsidiagy {(w,e.f May 02, 2023)

Ashutosh Naik

Key management persannel (we,f May 62, 2023)

Hemanta Kuswr Pradhan

Independent Director

Rajinder Singh Loona

Independent Dircclor

Sushil Salanki

Independent Director

D The folluwling transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ardinary course of busisess:

Nature of Transaction

Related Party

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
3F March 2024

Billionbrains (rarage Ventures Limited (formerly known as
Riltlonbiains Garage Ventures Private Limited)

Groww Asscl Management Limited

Grovww Invest Tech Private Limited (Farmely known as
Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

Professianal and consulling charges
Iixpenses incumred by related paily on behaifl of Company
Reimbursement paid

Expenses incurzed by related party en behalf of Company
Expenses incurred by Company on behalfof refated party
Reimbursement recavered

Reimbursement paid

Rental expense

1sstie of equity shares {including securilics premium)

2,296.37
8437
(84.37)

(56.41}
56.41

98,37

1,583.34
42.45
(42.45)

918.00
(91%.00)

(918.00)
227.14

10,800,060

The renmuneration to direcrors during the year ended 31 March 2025, includes sitting fees of INR 3,700 and commission of INR 3,600 (which is subject to the approval of the sharcholdets of the

Company} {31 March 2824: INR 3,600},

B, Ostsianding hakances

Parlicuburs

Related Party

Asat
3 Mareh 2025

As at
3 March 2624

Growsw Asset Management Limited

Billionbrains Garage Venturcs Limited (formerly known as
Hiltionbesins Gurage Ventures Private Limited)

Receivable fron related parcy
Tmde payable

Trle payabies

(30.35)

(738.78}

918.00
(227.14)

(1,583,349



Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in
their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated afler filing of the Memorandum, Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable

2

15

w

=

to such enterprises as at 31 March 2025 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available w

ith the company, Further, in management's view, the impact

of interest, il any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium E Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act') is not expected to be materinl.

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting

- Principal amount
- Interest due thereon

The amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment made to the supplicr beyond the appointed day during the year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appeinted day during the year)
but without adding the interest under this Act

Amount of interest aceried and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succceding years, till actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure.

Total outstanding principal dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises included in Trade Payables

Key Ratios

a) Current Ratio

¢) Retun an Equity Ratio

g) Trade Receivables turnover ratio
j) Net capital tumover ratio

k) Net profit ratio
1) Return on Capital employed

Details of significant ch

Numerator

Total current assets

Loss for the year
Revenue from operations
Revenue from operations

Loss for the year
Loss before tax

Denominator

Total cwirent Jiabilitics

Average total equity

Average trade receivables

Average working capilal (i.e. Total current assels less
Total current liabilities)

Revenue from operations

Capital employed = Net worth

31 March 2025

31 March 2024 % variance

1.10
-489%

1.00
6%

-9221%
-9%

ial ratios, along with d

2.29 -52%
-254% -235%
0.54 84%
% -1%
-3713% -5508%
-43% 34%

| explanations thereof:

(i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous fi ial year) in key i

Ratio

Reason for Variance

a) Current Ratio
b) Return on Equity ratio

¢) Trade Receivables tumover ratio
d) Net capital turnover ratio
d) Net profit ratio,

¢) Return an Capital employed,

The current assets (majorly investments) and current liabilities (majorly trade payables) have increased in the current year as compared to previous year.
The decrease in ratio is on account of higher percentage increase in current liabilities.

Decrease is on account of increase in losses (majory on account of increase in professional and consulting charges) which is partly offsct by increase in
average equity on account of issue of shares during the year.

Increase is on account of decrease in average trade reccivables
Decreased on account increase in current liabilities.
Deereased on account of increase in professional and consulting charges and thereby increase in losses.

Decrease is on account of increase in losses (majory on account of increase in professional and consulting charges) which is partly offset by increase in
average equity an account of issue of shares during the year.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either fram borrowed funds or share premium or any other sourees or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
enlilies, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identificd by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any partics (funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identificd by or behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guaranice, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneliciaries.

Segment Reporting
The ultimate holding company prepares the consolidated financial statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108 on operating segments, the Company has not disclosed the seg)
info ion in the standalone financial

As per aur report of even date

R & Co. LLP

red Accountghis

T et

ohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No, : 222515
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23 Emyployee benefit obligations

Defined Contribution Plun

t Company Limited)

Contribution are made to Provident fund in India for employees. The contributions are made e registered Provident fund administered by the Government. The eXpenses recagnised

during (he period towards defined comtribution plan is INR 2.39 million for the year ended March 31, 2025 (INR 1.7 niillion for the year cnded Mazch 31, 2024),

Defined henefit plans

The Company provides for gratuily for cmployees in [ndia as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who ase in contiruous service for a period of § years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic safary per month consputed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the

number of years of service,

As at March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2624
Current Non-current Current Nen-current
Gratuily 1,49 5.82 1.39 5.09
Total employee henefit oblizations 1.89 5.82 1.39 5.09
(1) Reconciliation of opening and closing bakances of Defined Benefit Obligation
As on As an
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligation {DB0) at beginning of year 649 0.60
Cuarrent service cost 193 1.71
Interest cost 0.46 -
Actuarial logs / (pain) recognised in other comprehensive income
a) changes in demographic assumption (0.80) -
k) changes in finuncial assumptions 0.20 -
¢} experience adjustments 0.41 1.25
Benefits paid (0.92) -
Transfer In /{Out) (0.05) 293
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) af year end 1.71 6.9

(i5

(iif) Expenses recognised in Other Compreliensive Income (OCH)

Fxpenses recopnised during the year

Far the year erded

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 1.93 L7t
Interest cosl 046 -
Expenses recognised in Profit and loss 2.3% 1.71

For the year ended

Fer the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actuarial Losses/ (Gains) on oblipstion for the year (0.20) 1.25
Net Expense/(Income) For the period recognised in OCT (0.20) 1.25

{iy) Actuarial assumptions

[\

Deseription Gratuity =s un March 31
2015 2024
Moriality Table (LIC) L00% of JALM 2012-14 100% of JALM
(2012 - L4y

Discount rate {p.a} G %
Altrition Rate

Up to 30 years 49.37% 3038%

From 31 lo 44 yeurs 27.88% 27.54%

Above 44 years 43.24% 25.00%
Rate of escalation in salary {p.a) 12.00% 12.06%
Retirgment age 60 Years 60 Years

Sensktivity Analysis - Gratuity

Particulars

For the year ended

Far the year ended

March 31, 2028 March3l.2a24
Discounl rate : +1% {0.27 (0.25}
Discounlrate : -1% 0.31 0.27
Salary escalation rate : +1% 0.21 620
Sulary escalation rate 1 -1% (0.19) {G.20)
Aflrition rate: +1%* (0.06) -
Attrition rate: -1%* 0.08 0.06

The above sensitivity analyses are based an a change in an assumplion while holding 21t ather assumplions constant, When calcufating $he seositivity of the defined benefit
ohfigation ta significant actuarial assumptions the same methed (present value of the defined henofit abligation caleulated with the projected unit credit method st the end of the
reporling period) has been applied n3 when caleulating the defined benefit liubility recognised in the balance sheel. The Mortality does nol have u significant impact on the Linbility ,
lience are not censidered a significant aclaarial assumplion for the purpesc of Sensitivity analysis, The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the senditivily analysis

did nol change compared to the prior period.

The expected fature contribution and eslimated Tutuig henefit paymenls from the fund ase as follaws

Gratulty
Expected contribution te the fund during the year ending Murch 31, 2024 Unfanded
Estimated benedit payments from the fund - Time periodd (in years)
Within | year 1.89
2.5 years 508
6 -L0 yeuss 239
Above 10 year 0.73
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L]

Financisk fnstrumenis - Falr vatues and dsk management

A Accounting ckassificatinns and Fair valies

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair valie hicmrchy based on the inputs bsed in the valiwation techniques as faflows:

1eved | - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markeis for identical assets or Labilitics
Level 2 - Inputs other than asoted prices included within Level | that are observable ft 1he assel or liability, gither directly {i.e. as prices) of Stdirextly (i . derived rom prices)
Level 3 - Inputs fur 1he assets or labilitics that are not based on observabie market data (unabservable inpulsy

“The following tahle shows the camrying ansounts sl fir vatues af firancial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hicrmchy

As at March 31, 2025

Carrying value Fair value
Pardiculars FVTPL FVTOCT  Amartised Tuotat Eevel1 LevelZ Leveld Tatal
cosls carrying
amuisil
Financhal assels
Cash awd cash equivatents - - 0.19 0,19 - - - -
Trade receivahles - - 24.26 2426 - - - -
Tnvestments 1,792.03 246 - 1,73549 1,792.03 - 246 1,794 4%
Oiher Linancisl nssels - - 1.27 1.37 - - - -
£, 79203 148 2572 1,420.21 £.782.03 - 246 L4449
Financtal Habllitles
Tragle payohles . 146,28 15624 - - - -
- 56,24 146.28 - . N B
As at Mareh 31, 2014
Carrying value Falr valiee
Farticulars FVTPL FYTOCI  Amortived Tatal Level | Level2  Leveld Tozal
cosls earTying
amuunt
Firancial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents - - GIR 008 - - - -
Trade receivables - - 1300 13.06 - - - -
Investinents L1831 246 - 1,740.77 11831 - 246 5,730,717
Other financiad assels - - 305 805 - - - -
128,31 246 11,69 E,751.96 1,728.31 - 246 1,230.77
Financlal liabities
- 120.28 120.28 - - . -
- - 17.40 1740
- 137.68 £37.68 - - - i

The company dacs not have any financial assel or liabitities measured at fair value 1rough other comprehansive inconze.

For invesimants mcasured at FVOCE (Level 3§ the campany has considercil the most recent available valuation alinvestments whase Fair yalue is determined basis net assel value,

The company has not separately dischsed the Fnir values for financial assets and lishilities other than investments, becawse their camyiag amounts age a reasonable approximation of the fuir values.

B Valuntion techrigne used 1 determine falr vulues

Specific valdation Leehinique to value finsncial instuments like:

C ble company multip)

i. Use of quoted markel prices for linancial instruments iraded in active markets.

e
=

o

Firancial risk management

ounted cash fow analysis for other financial insirments,

Financial isteuments — Falre vatues and risk maragement (continued)

“The Company lias expostn: t the fallatving risks acising fiom finonckat insiruments:

iy Credit risk;
(i} Liquidity risk; and
iy Market risk

Risk management framewerk

The Company’s haard of directors bits overatt
risks faced by the Cumpany, to sel appropriale risk limits and contols and to maaiter 1isks and adbeeence to Hm
Company's activities. The Company, thanigh its baining and management standards any) proceduses, aims te maintain a discipiined and constrclive control

obligations.

E Credit dsk

ihility fisr the establish and

it The fuir values for financicl assels and liabilities other than investments are disclosed st there corrying value as their camying omounis are 2 reasouable approxinution of the fair values.

ight of the Company's risk masagement fromcwork. The Company's risk mamgement policivs are established to identify and anlyse The
Risk mutnagenkenl poticies and sysdems are reviewed repularly to sefleet cianges i market conditions and the
in which all

| Mligir roles and

Credit risk §5 the risk of tinancial koss o the Company it a custorner uf countemary to 2 finaucial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Cotnpany's reccivables from custonsers, Credit

gk

o5 fromy cash hetd with hanks and finaricial instiutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including Irade receivable, The maximum exposure tn credil 7isk is equal w0 the camying value of the financiot assets. The

abjective of managing counterparty credil risk 18 to preveat losscs in financial nssets. The Companiy assesses the cradit guatity of he eotrlerpartics, taking into account their fnancial position, past experience and ather factors,

The allowsnce far lifctine expeckd coodit loss on tmde recivables for the years eoded Manch 31, 2025 and 2024 was INR Nil.

Cash and cash equivalents

Credil tisk on cash and cash equivaleats is Hintited as the Company genealfy invests in deposits with banks and fisancia institutions with Bigh credit atings assigned by domestic credit raing agencics.

Trade Receivallesl]

Tus nasure the expected credit losses, the Company has a farge number ol customer base with shared credit risk elaraciteri

Irade receivablc) i d for

of foss

ce, As per policy of the Company, tnule reccivable Lo the exient nat covered by collateral (i.e. wnsceured
and the amount of loss is recagnised in the Statensent of Profit and Loss. Trade roceivable of the graup ase of short duration. Though wade receivables are due are
short duration there ore certain insthees of delay in colfection. The Group ias computed expected eredit loss duc to detay in collection.



Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly knawn as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amownts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
¢cash or another financial asset, The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity 1o meet its
linbilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaccepiable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company has managed its
liquidity and working capital requirements through cash generated from operations and through iatermittent short ferm borrowings, The Company has sufficient
short term fund based lines, which provides healthy liquidity and these carry highest credit quality rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquidity risk is
perceived,

The tables below pravide details regarding the contractual maturities of signiticant financial liabilities as at:

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2025 Carrying amount 6 months orless  Duein 6- 12 Dueinl1-2  Due More than
months year 2 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 146.28 146.28 - - -
Other financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - “ - -
146.28 146.28 - - -

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2024 Carvylng amount 6 months orless  Duein6-12 Duein1-2  Duc More than
onths year 2 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 120.28 120.28 - - -
Other financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 17.40 4.46 4.87 8.06 -
137.68 124.74 4.87 8.06 -

iii. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finaneial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of
three types of risks: interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk. Financial instraments affected by market risk includes trade receivable/payable, other financiat
assets and liabilities. The Company is not exposed to any significant market risks.

(a) Interest rate visk '

Titerest rate risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The interest
rate risk can also impact the provision for retiral benefits. The Company gencratly utilises fixedl rate borrowings and therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since
neither the carrying amouat nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in the markel interest rates. The Company is not expoged to significant
interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.

(b) Currency risk 7

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the faiv value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate beeause of changes in foreign cxchange rates. Exposures can
arise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee.

The Company does not have inta any foreign currency denominated assets or liaiblities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, Accordingly, the Company is not
exposed to foreign exchange risk,
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24 Financia! instruments -- Fair values and risk management (continued)
24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

©. Maturity Analysis of Assets And Liabilities

The below table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or seltled,

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

(Less than 12

(More than 12

(Less than 12

{Mare than 12

months) months) nionths) months)
Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 0.19 - 0.08 -
Trade receivables 24.26 - 13.06 -
Investments 1,792.03 2.46 1,728.31 2.46
Other financial assets - 1.27 3.87 4.18
Current tax assets (nef) 2.49 - - [.98
Property, plant and equipment - 5.19 B 2.51
Right-of-use asseis - - - 17.38
Other non-financiat assets 104.45 - 2647 -
1,923.42 9.52 1,771.79 28.51
Liabilities

Trade payables

i. Total outstanding dues of micro and smail enterpsises - - 0.17 -

ii. Totaf outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 146.28 - 120.11 -

small enterprises
Lease fiability - - 9.33 8.06
Provistons 1.89 5.82 1.39 5.09
Other non-financial liabilities 7.69 - 9.6% -

155.86 5.82 140.69 I.}ﬁ_

iv. Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investar, creditor and market eonfidence and to sustain future development of the
business. The Company monitors the return on capital and its objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so us to maximize shareholder
value, During the year the company has raised funds by way of borrowings and the cash and bank balances inciuding liquid investments significantly exceeds the

borrowings accordingly the net debt is Nil and consequently net gearing ratio is also Nil.

The spuce has been left blank intentionally
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15 Contingent liahilities and eommitments (o the extent not provided far)

As at Asut

Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024

a) Contingent Liabilitics - -
b) Commitments
Eslimated amount of cenlracts remaining to be exceuicd on capilal account and nol provided for : - -
€) Clainss against the Company not acknowledged as debts - -
“Fhe Company did nol bave any lang term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

26 Earnings per share (EPS)‘

The lojtowing table sets forth the computation of basic and diuied earnings per share:

Patlicutars For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 20824
Earmingy
Profit for the year atlributable to cquily sharcholders for caleulation of basic and diluled EPS (In INR Millions) (375.38) (377.80)
Shares
Weiglited average number of equity shares outslanding during the year for caleulation of basic EPS (In Millions) 182.94 122,62
Effect of dilutive polential equity shares - -
Weighted aversge pumber of equity shares for calculation of dilsted EPS (In lakhs) 182.94 12162
Basic earnings per share {3.15) (3.08)
DlHuted earnings por share (3.15) {3.08)
Wominal value per share 10.00 10,64
27 Related party disclosures
A Names of related parties and related party refationship with whom tramsactions have taken place
Name Type
Rijlionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formely Holding Company (From August 22, 2024}
known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private
Linsited)
Groww Invest Tech Private Eimited (Formely known Felfow Subsidiary (w,e.f Aug 22, 2024)
as Nexlbillion Teclhuology Private Linited)
Groww Serv Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary {w,e.f May 02, 2023)
CGiroww Trustee Limited Fellow Subsidiary (w,e.f May 02, 2023)
Roslan Dave Key ent | | {w,e.f May 02, 2023)
Varun Gupla ey management personniel (w,e.f May 02, 2021)
Pratik Lakhatia Key personnel {w,c.f May 02, 2023)
Ashish Gegl - Hndepesdent Director
Neeru chaudhry Independent Director (till Febrwary 19,2025)
Anamika Agarwal Independent Directer (w.c.f February 19,24125)
Harsh Jain Key management peesonniel (w.e.f May 02, 2023)

The space has been lefi blank intentionally
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27 Related party disclosures (Continued)

B, The following transactlons were cartied out with the related partles in the ordinary course of business:

. For the year ended Far the year ended
Nature of trapsact
Neme of refated party & M transaciion March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
lssue of Complusory Converlible Preference shares
Billionbsains Garnge Ventures Limiled (formely Saftware, Server & Platform Charges 14.63 830
known a5 Bitlionbeains Garage Ventures Private Professional and Consutling Charges 13.77 16,80
Limited) Share based paymenis 37.13 1L75
Expenses incurred by related party on behall of Company 166.41 125,18
Reimbursement paid (20049} {85.46)
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf ol related parly {0.21) {4.27)
Reimbursement recovered 2,88 160
Rent expense 11.05 4.36
Issue of equily shares (including securities premiuny) (500.00) -
Groww Invest Teeh Private Limited (Formely known |Expenscs incurred by retsied party en belwif of Company 0.07 12712
Advances recavered
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party {0.13) {0.37)
Reimbursement recovered 0.13 0.31
Rent expense - 2.8t
Issue of equity shares (including securities premiun) - 1,015.00
Groww Trustee Limited Expenses incwired by related party on belisf of Company 0.06 0.92
Reimbussement paid (0.06} -
Expenses ingurred by Company on behalf of related party - {0.92)
Reimbursement paid -
Rental Income (0.10) (0.23)
Neobillion Fintech Private Limited Expenses incurred by Company on behal Fof related party - {0.1()
Reimbursement paid - -
Reimbursement recovered -
Reimbursement recovered 0.03 -
Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company 0.1l -
Reimbursement paid 0.00 -
Key management personne! Short terny employee benefits 23.91 19,97
Post employement benefils* 1.34 1.75
Tndependeat Direetor Sitting fees 4.80 4.39
C.  Ouistanding balances
Related Party Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Neobiflion Fintech Private Linsited Trade Payable - -
Groway Serv Private Limited (Foemerly known as Reccivable [rom relaled party - 19
Billionbrains Capital Private Limided) Trade Payable (.11} -
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known [Receivable from related party - 0.07
as Nexthitlion Technology Private Limiled)
Billienhraing Garage Ventures Limited (formely Trade Payable {4L.85) (39.72)
known a3 Billionbrains Garage Ventures Privale Receivable [om selated pasty - 2.67
Groww Trustee Limited Trade Payable - {0.92)
Trade Receivable 0.03 -
Receivable fron: related parly - 0.23
Key munagesnent personnel Pravision post employement benefits* (2.22) (1.75)

*Transactions and batances with key management personnel for the year ended March 31, 2025 is basis allocation for gratuity of key management personnel obtained from actuary.
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28 Share Basced Payments

The holding Company has Employee Stock Oplion Scheme namely "Billicnbrains Garage Ventures Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024 (formesty known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures
Private Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024" (BGV ESOS 2024) , which was replaced from Groww Inc 2017 Stock Incentive Plan ("GSIP 2017} subsequent to the approval of the scheme
of merger hetween Groww Inc., State of Delaware, USA and the Company by the Hon'ble NCLT via merger order dated 28th March 2024,

BGV ESOS 2024 is prepared basis the same terms and conditions as of GSIP 2017 except on the exercise period of the options which is modified o twenty years from existing ten years and excreise
price has been modified t0 INR 10 from excreise price $0.27 - $91.3453 for ail the aptions. Further, the options of GSIP 2017 have been adjusted for swap ratio ic., for every one (1) eption held
wider GSIP 207, such option holders shall be granted two point lwo (2.2} options under BGV ESOS 2024 as applicd to sharcholders and have been restated as if they were available of carlicsl
reporting period in the restated consalidated financiaf informalion, irrespective of their actual date,

On 28 June 2024, the board of directors of holding company approved the BGY ESOS 2024 for issue of stock options t¢ the permanent employees including Direetors of the Company (other than
Promoter(s) o person belanging to the Promoter Graup of the Company, Tndependent Directors, if any, and Directors halding dircelly or indirectly more than 10% of the outstanding cquity shares of
the Company) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as an “Emplayee(s)™). The buard of dircetoss has constituled an ESOP commiitice for implementation and administration of BGY ESOS 2024,
The employee selected by the ESOP committee from time 1o time will be entitled to options, subjeet to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions, viz., continuing employment and subjeet to
performance parameters defined in (he BGV ES0S 2024,

Stock options granted under BGV ESOS 2024/GSIP 2017 would vest based on the terms and conditfons mentioned in the respective letler of Grantstock nplion grant natice. The company/erstwhile
holding company has issued stock optivns with a vesting period of 12 - 48 months with a ¢liff of 12 months and fully vested stock options.

For stock oplions granted uwder BGV BSOS 2024, the weighted average fair vaue of options during the year ended 3F March 2025 was INR 20.31 and for steck eptions granted under GSIP 2017, the
weighled average fair value of options during the year 31 March 2024 - §18.48. As al 31 March 2025, the weighted averge contractual remaining lifc of optiens is $4.81 years,

Elighile employees were provided with an alternative of cash ar share based payment for performance bonuses. Pursuant to the same, the Company paid performance banus inn the form of stock
aptions amounling to INI 4,10 Miltion (31 March 2024 - INR 5.46 Millian) which is inciuded as pact of Sataries, allowances and bonus.

During the year ended 31 March 2625 -
(i) the holding Company has issued bonus in the ratio of 14:1 %0 all the existing shareholders whose names appear in the register of members of the Company as on 9 August 2024, Hence, cach option
granied under BGY ES0S 2024 would be eligible for 15 equily shares upon excerise.

(i) the bolding Company has further issucd bonus in the ratio of 10:3 to il the existing sharcholders whose names appear in the register of members of the Company as on 29 January 2025, Henee,
cach option granted under BGV ESOS 2024 would be cligible for 1.5 cquity shares upon excerisc over and above point {i).

(iif) The holding Company has sub-divided 1 equity share having a face value of INR 10/~ each Fully paid up into 5 equily shares having a face value of INR 2/- each fully paid up. Hence, each option
granted undes BGV 308 2024 has been sub-divided into 5 options with an excercise price of INR 2/-. The effect of the same have been restated as if they were avaitable of carliest reporting period in
the financial statements, irrespective of their actual date.

Accordingly options granted shali have conversion ratio as below:

(i) options granted upto % Angust 2024 shatl have a conversion ratio of 16.5:1.

(it) options granted from @ August 2024 to 28 January 2025 shall have a cenversion ratic of L.1:1,
(ii1) eptions granted from 2% January 2023 shall have a conversion ratio of 1:1,

Reconciliation of share options duriug the financial year:

Particulars 31 Murch 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 20,72,605 -
- Granted/ (Trensferred In} 10,73.471 20,72,005
- Forfeited/{ Transferred Gat) {3,09,E85) -
Outstanding as at the end of the year 28,36,291 24,72,005
Vested as at the end of the year 16,09,565 19,96.625

Fair value of stock options granted

The fair value of the stock options pranted is estimaled at (he grant date using amy’s length price of lhe stock oplions computed based on the Black-Schales model, taking into accounl the terms and
conditions upon which the stock options were granted. The inputs used to measure fair values of aptions granted on the grant date were as follows:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Dividend yicld (% p.a.} 0% 0%

Expecled volatility (% p.a.)

48.6% -49.1%

43% - 47.2%)

Risk-free interest rate (% p.a.)

6.69% - 7.0%

3.6% - 4.6%

Expecled life of eption {years)

10,15 - 11,77

6.50 -7.00

The space has been left blank infentionaily
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29 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspandence with its
the Entrep s Mi fum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Aceordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payahle 1o such enterprises as at 31 March 2025 has heen made in the
financial statements based on information received and available with the company, Further, in munagement's view, the impact af interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {'the Act’) is not expected ta be material.

Tarticulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid ta any supplier as at the end of the accounting year.

- Principal amount - 0.17
- Interest due thereon - <
The amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)

but without adding the interest under this Act : )
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. g 5
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the suceeeding years, till actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expendilure. ° -
Total autstanding prineipal dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises included in Trade Payables (Note 10) - 0.17

30 Segment Reporting

The ultimate holding pany prepares the lidated financial In d with Tnd AS 108 an operating segments, the Company has not disclosed the infi jon in the dnlone financial

statements.

31 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either frum borrowed funds or share premium or any ather sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persens or entities, including foreign entities
("Int liaries") with the und ling, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on hehalf of the Campany (Ullimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not
received any fund from any parties (funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indircctly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified by ar behalf of the Company (*Uliimate
Beneficiaries") or provide sny gurantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.

32 Scheme of Arrangement
The Board of Dircctors of the Company on June 25, 2021, considered and upproved the demerger of Alternative Investment Funds (AIF) and Portfolio Management Services (PMS) business (collectively
the "De d Business") of the Company to Indiabulls Tnvestment Management Limited (formerly Indiabulls Venture Capital Management Company Limited) ("IIML"), by way of a scheme of
arrangement ("the Scheme of Arrangement”), subject to the approvals/ permissions of the regulatory authorities in terms of the provisians of Section 230 to 232 of the Companics Act, 2013 and other
annlicable laws,

Conscquently, the Company has received the formal order dated September 13, 2022 issued by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarth Bench, vide order reference No.
NCLT/Reg//FO/2022/1087 and requisite approval from the Securities and Exchange Board of India for implementation of the Scheme of Arrangement. Accordingly, the Company made necessary
adjustments to its books of accounts to give effect to the Scheme of Ar t with the Appointed Date as April 1, 2021 ("Appointed Date"). As a result. the Company has recorded goodwill ( net ) of
Rs. 1,020.59 lakhs which has been adjusted in the Reserves and Surplus as at March 31, 2023 . As stipulated under the Scheme of Arrangemenl, the Campany lias transferred all property and rights and
Tiabilities and duties and employees pertaining to the Demerged Business to IIML. Further, the Company has made requisite submissions with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana and reduced
its authorized and issued and paid up equily share capital rom Rs. 17,000 lakhs divided into 17,00,00,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each Lo Rs. 10,000 lakhs divided into 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.
10 cach, in compliance with the Scheme of Amangement.

The Scheme of Armangement has accordingly heen given effect in the financial statements with eflect from the Appointed Date in accordance with the Scheme of Ammangement and the applicable
accounting standards. As mentioned above, the Earnings per Equity Share and the figures in respect of the current year are comparable with the previous comparable year presented.

33 Key Ratios

Additional regulatory information required under (WB) (xvi) of Division Il of Schedule T amendment, disclosure of ratios, is nol applicable to the Company as il is in assel mangemenl business and not
an NBFC registered under Section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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